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MAY 19 1882

MEMORANDUM FOR: Bill Barr
Deputy Assistant Director
Office of Poli ment

FROM: Robert E. Powi '
Deputy Assistant Secretary
(Enforcement)

SUBJECT: Warrantless Search Authority for Monetary
Instruments (LaFalce Bill)

Pursuant to our telephone conversations last week on
the above captioned subject, I am forwarding a copy of a
memorandum written to me by the Assistant Commissioner,
Office of Border Operations, U.S. Customs Service, which
I believe makes a gond case for Customs' need in this area.

In addition to the information contained in the Customs
paper I think it is worth mentioning that almost every day
Customs personnel arrest and seize people who are bringing
small quantities of drugs into the country. Typically, on
May 16, 1982, one defendant was arrested at Miami Airport
with 2.14 1lbs. of cocaine concealed on her body. Another
defendant was arrested the same day with 3.99 1bs. of
cocaine concealed in the sides of a brief case. 1In these
cases and in similar cases the "mules" probably leave the
country with a quantity of cash sufficient to make the pur-
chase. 1In the cases cited above the woman probably needed
$25,000 in cash to buy 2.14 1lbs. of cocaine in Colombia and
the man with the brief case probably needed between $40,000
and $50,000 to buy 3.99 1bs. in cocaine. The figures quoted
represent rock-bottom prices. The point is that there are
large quantities of cash leaving the country daily. Not
only do the major drug trafficking organizations move money
out by boat and private aircraft in large quantities but
large numbers of smaller operators move cash out for drug
purchases in smaller quantities ranging from $10,000 to
$100,000.

If you need any further information please call.
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Mr. Chairman and members of the Subcommittee:

Thank you for the opportunity to appear before you today to
testify on behalf of the Department of Justice regarding our
utilization of the Bank Secrecy Act in narcotics investigations,
particularly in the South Florida area.

At the present time the Criminal Division of the Department
is staffing three field operations which examine the inter-
relationship between drug-trafficking offenses and Bank Secrecy
Act violations. These field operations are primarily organized
to conduct investigations into the currency law violations and
financial dealings of drug traffickers and money launderers. The
first operation, "Operation Greenback I," is located in Miami and
began in May 1980 with an assignment of two trial attorneys from
the Division's Narcotic and Dangerous Drug Section. In the
summer of 1980, one Greenback attorney was reassigned to a
suboffice of Greenback I located in Tampa to pursue a grand jury
investigation of a marihuana-smuggling organization and to work
in conjunction with the United States Attorney's Office for the
Middle District of Florida to advance financial investigations in
that office. Our most recent endeavor, "Operation Greenback II"
(Chicago), commenced with the assignment of a trial attorney to
the Northern District of Illinois to work in conjunction with the
United States Attorney's Office in that district, as well as with
United States Attorneys' offices in surrounding districts, to
enhance the techniques of financial investigations in the

Midwest.



I. Commencement of Operation Greenback

In the spring of 1980 officials of the Tréasury Department
met with officials of the Department of Justice to discuss a
proposed project whereby certain investigative and prosecutive
resources of the respective Departments would be brought to bear
against the financial operations of major drug trafficking
organizations and their associates operating in the Southern
District of Florida. At that time a recently completed study of
currency transactions at Federal Reserve Banks throughout the
United States had dramatically demonstrated that, whereas the
majority of Federal Reserve Banks had found it necessary to add
hundreds of millions of dollars to the total currency in
circulation in their regions, the Federal Reserve Bank in Florida
had surpluses of currency deposits.

With most of the marihuana and cocaine entering the United
States being brought through Florida, it was readily apparent
that much of the currency surplus which was pouring into the
Federal Reserve Bank in Florida was attributable to the financial
activities of major drug trafficking organizations either
directly or through money-laundering organizations. In March of
1980 a memorandum was prepared for the then-Assistant Attorney
General of the Criminal Division recommending a joint project
with the participation of the investigative agencies of the
Department of the Treasury and the Drug Enforcement
Administration and the Federal Bureau of Investigation of the

Department of Justice. It would also have the on-site



participation by attorneys from Justice's Criminal and Tax
Divisions.

In May of 1980 two staff attorneys from the Narcotic and
Dangerous Drug Section went to Miami representing the Criminal
Division's commitment to the project. At that time the Operation
Greenback Task Force was composed of investigators from the
Internal Revenue Service and the United States Customs Service,
with liaison with the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco and Firearms,
the Federal Bureau of Investigation, and the Drug Enforcement
Administration. An attorney from the Criminal Section of the Tax
Division provided support by reviewing all prospective cases
involving Title 26, United States Code, tax violations. As
stated in the original proposal, the participation of the
Department would be on-site and operational and would be for the
purpose of securing two main objectives. The first objective was
to work operationally with both Assistant United States Attorneys
and Tax Division attorneys in the Southern District of Florida to
develop cases utilizing U.S. Code provisions in Title 31 (Bank
Secrecy Act), Title 26 (Tax violations), Title 21 (Drug
violations), and Title 18 (Racketeering violations), as well as
to seek both criminal and civil forfeitures as provided for under
those titles. Our second objective was to take the investigative
and prosecutive techniques learned in Greenback I and pass them
on to other districts by both operational on-site participation
and also through seminars and other programs facilitating the

exchange of such information.



II. Bank Secrecy Act

The Bank Secrecy Act, which became law in 1970, has been
the primary statute utilized by the Operation Greenback Task
Force. The reporting reguirements under the Act provide two main
benefits to our efforts. First, it provides intelligence
information which tends to highlight persons involved in other
criminal violations. Second, it contains criminal sanctions to
deter unlawful activity.

The two reports which have provided most of the underlying
foundation for the financial flow investigation techniques are as
follows:

1. Form 4789 -- Currency Transaction Report

A. Definitions

Title 31, U.S. Code, Section 1081 (as effectuated by 31 CFR
103.22) requires that bank reports of domestic currency
transactions in excess of $10,000 be filed with the Internal
Revenue Service on Form 4789. The law does not require reporting
of transactions betweeen banks, transactions between a bank and a
regular customer who qualifies for inclusion on an "exemption
list," nor transfers that do not involve the actual physical
transfer of currency. The form is to be filed by the banks or
financial institutions that exchange currency.

B. Criminal Violations

Title 31, U.S. Code, Section 1058 provides for a fine of up
to $1,000 or up to one year imprisonment or both for a willful

violation of the reporting requirement. Operation Greenback has



sought to identify both money couriers and corrupt bank officials
through undercover operations, surveillance, and traditional
grand jury investigation to determine the existence of unreported
currency transactions of amounts in excess of $10,000, or where a
series of transactions - each under $10,000 but aggregating to
over $10,000 - is being utilized solely to subvert the intentions
of the reporting requirement.

Title 31, U.S. Code, Section 1059 provides for a fine of
not more than $500,000 and/or five years' imprisonment for a
willful violation if it is committed in furtherance of any other
federal violation or as part of a pattern of illegal activity
involving over $100,000 worth of transactions in a twelve-month
period.

2. Form 4790 ~-- Currency and Monetary Instruments Report

A. Definitions

Title 31, U.S. Code, Section 1101 (as effectuated by 31 CFR
103.23) requires that reports dealing with the transportation of
currency or other monetary instruments into or out of the United
States in excess of $5,000 be filed with the U.S. Customs
Service. The form is to be filed by the individual upon entering
or leaving the country.

B. Criminal Violations

Title 31, U.S. Code, Section 1058 contains a penalty of up
to $1,000 fine and/or one year imprisonment for failure to file
the 4790 form., The reporting statute requires the actual

physical transportation of currency or a bearer instrument in



excess of $5,000 across the United States border. When travelers
enter the United States they are given the form which notifies
them of the reporting requirement.

Operation Greenback also employs the traditional investi-
gative techniques of surveillance, border checks, and the use of
informants, etc., to detect violations of this part of the Bank
Secrecy Act.

Title 31, U.S. Code, Section 1059 sets forth the felony
provisions for 4790 Qiolations, which are the same as for the
previously described 4789 violations.

III. Present Staffing

A. Operation Greenback I (Miami)

Attorneys

At the present time there are four Criminal Division
attorneys assigned from the Narcotic and Dangerous Drug Section
presently on-site in the Miami Greenback field office working
under the auspices of the United States Attorney and located in
that office. The attorney staff consists of an attorney in
charge and three attorneys. In addition, one I.R.S. attorney is
presently "on loan" to Operation Greenback. The Tax Division's
Criminal Section has also provided one attorney who is presently
involved in the preparation of a Title 26 tax case for
prosecution in the Southern District of Florida. Accordingly, we
anticipate a minimum of four full-time attorneys assigned to the
main project as well as one attorney working on an "as needed"

basis for the exclusive prosecution of tax cases which arise out



of the project.

Special Agents

At the present time the Internal Revenue Service has
provided twenty-six special agents and seven revenue agents to
work on the project. There are also ten U.S. Customs Service
special agents and ten special agents of the Drug Enforcement
Administration attached to the operation. Liaison is maintained
with the FBI, Secret Service, and the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco
and Firearms.,

B. Operation Greenback I (Tampa)

Attorneys

The Criminal Division (Narcotic and Dangerous Drug Section)
has provided one attorney to work in conjunction with the Office
of the United States Attorney in the Middle District of Florida.
This attorney was responsible for the early coordination of an
investigation into what had been termed the Walker marihuana and
cocaine importation and currency exportation case. The primary
subject in this investigation was murdered in April, 1981 - his
body was found in a swamp with a garrote around the neck. This
is one more example of the violence which is associated with the
drug-trafficking business. Various associates of this subject
have been indicted and twelve of those were convicted on Title 21
drug violations, Title 31 Bank Secrecy Act violations, and
charges of conspiracy and crossing state lines in aid of their

racketeering activities under Title 18.



Special Agents

Agent support has been provided by the IRS, U.S. Customs
Service, DEA, and the FBI.

C. Operation Greenback II (Chicago)

In October of 1981, one of the attorneys who had initiated
Operation Greenback I in 1980 was reassigned to Chicago,
Illinois, to work under the auspices of the United States
Attorney for the Northern District of Illinois as part of a Major
Narcotics-Financial Crimes Task Force in that office. The task
force is being supported by special agents and revenue agents
from the Internal Revenue Service, as well as special agents of
the U.S. Customs Service, Drug Enforcement Administration, and
the Federal Bureau of Investigation. The Division attorney is
working with the United States Attorney and his Assistants in the
development of the financial aspects of major drug trafficking
cases. It is expected to be highly successful in discovering and
prosecuting violations of Title 31, Title 21, Title 26, and Title
18. It is also anticipated that significant forfeitures will
result from this effort.

On a regional scope, this attorney will also provide
support to other United States Attorneys' offices in the Midwest
so that similar programs can be developed as needed.

IVv. Investigative Techniques

In discussing the techniques utilized in Operation
Greenback it should first be noted that Operation Greenback I
{Miami) is still in a developmental stage. Nevertheless, certain

investigative techniques and approaches have proven successful



and resulted in what can be termed inroads into the financial
dealings of major drug traffickers and associated money
launderers. The techniques utilized and refined in Greenback are
both innovative and traditional.

Greenback has had the support of the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency and its related bank examining
officials, which, through the refinement of their audit
procedures, have been able to uncover suspicious activity and
violations of the Bank Secrecy Act. The reporting of these
violations to the Treasury Department and the subsequent
referral, when warranted, to the Internal Revenue Service for
criminal investigation has proven to be an effective use of the
Form 4789 reports. As part of the Greenback approach, a joint
tax-drug grand jury was instituted so that the four involved
titles of the United States Code (18, 21, 26, 31) could be
investigated fully at the one time by all affected federal
investigative agencies, and with the needed sharing of
information. On the more traditional side, where specific
accounts were identified as being the conduits for the passage of
enormous amounts of currency, subsequent traditional physical
surveillance has resulted in the identification of couriers and
money launderers. The joint tax-drug grand jury approach has
provided the investigators and prosecutors with the ability to
immunize underlings and also the coextensive ability to compel
testimony under a grant of use immunity. These are some of the

types of investigative techniques which are presently being used
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in the operation.

V. Financial Law Enforcement Center

On January 11, 1982, the Financial Law Enforcement Center
(FLEC) was established within the U.S. Customs Service to examine
the financial characteristics of the criminal markets including
the illicit drug market. The Center assists in the development
of a law enforcement strategy that will exploit the vulnerability
of these criminal organizations through the use of appropriate
criminal and civil sanctions. Customs intends to enhance the
effectiveness of the Center by expanding its resources and
intelligence data bases, and through actively soliciting the
participation of other federal agencies. Customs' position as
the federal government's repository of Bank Secrecy Act financial
data is being improved through the employment of computerized
indices for Bank Secrecy Act information which will make the
information more readily accessible to federal drug agents.
Another service which will aid in the prosecution of currency
violations is the Center's preparation of detailed money-flow
charts to aid juries in following the often complicated transfer
of currency by drug-trafficking organizations which expend great
amounts of energy to obfuscate the telling financial trail of
their highly profitable illegal activity.

U.S. Commissioner of Customs William von Raab has clearly
identified the Customs Service's number one priority to be
stopping the flood of drugs coming into this country. His

commitment to the agency's Bank Secrecy Act role as a major part
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of that commitment is witnessed by Mr. von Raab's May 1982 speech
to the Bank Leadership Committee of the Florida Bankers
Association in which he stressed the need for cooperation between
the banks and the involved federal agencies as an integral part
of fighting the drug-trafficking and related money-laundering
organizations in Florida.

VI. Achievements

A. Operational

Because most of Greenback's indictments are in a process of
litigation or pending grand jury action, I am precluded from
discussing the evidence or facts of any particular case.

However, it can be said generally that the Operation Greenback
Task Force in Miami has presented evidence to grand juries which
returned true bills of indictment charging currency-related
offenses in twenty-five instances against some ninety-seven
individuals. Approximately twenty million dollars in cash and
two million dollars in property have been seized by Greenback
agents during the course of the Operation. Of these assets,
approximately five million dollars has been forfeited to the
government in two court actions, and the remainder is in the
process of being forfeited. In addition to these civil and
criminal actions, the Internal Revenue Service has levied
jeopardy and termination assessments of $112,500,467 through its
related administrative procedures. 1In addition, Bank Secrecy Act
regulations regarding exemption lists and reporting times have

been strengthened. Numerous banks have sought out the Office of
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the Comptroller of the Currency and have signed agreements both
acknowledging their responsibility under the act and committing
themselves to strict adherence to all of the provisions. The
filing of Form 4789 reports has increased approximately 400
percent since the inception of Greenback I. Prosecutions have
resulted in the convictions of various defendants for violations
of Title 21 (Drug violations), Title 31 (Bank Secrecy Act
violations), and Title 18 (Conspiracy and interstate travel in
aid of racketeering).

B. Information Sharing

To effectuate the second objective of the initial plan -
viz. the exchange of information about currency investigations -
Greenback attorneys and agents have given lectures on
investigative and prosecutive techniques and the law to Assistant
United States Attorneys and investigators all over the country,
including lecturing at the most recent Major Drug Traffickers
Prosecution Conference in which federal and state prosecutors and
agents participated to examine how inter-agency and
inter-governmental cooperation could maximize nationwide drug
enforcement efforts. One of our attorneys has also participated
in the production of a videotape prepared by the Internal Revenue
Service on the Bank Secrecy Act which will be shared with the
Department of Justice for training purposes. A manual on the
investigation and prosecution of the illegal laundering and
foreign transportation of currency has been prepared by Narcotic

Section attorney G. Roger Markley {(assigned to Greenback II in
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Chicago) and is being made available to prosecutors and agents.
A copy of this manual has been appended to my statement for
examination by this Subcommittee.

VII. Proposed Bank Secrecy Act Amendments

It is fitting that I come before this legislative body to
discuss our proposed amendments to the Bank Secrecy Act as this
Subcommittee held similar hearings prior to the passage of the
Bank Secrecy Act almost thirteen years ago. It is time to bring
the Bank Secrecy Act into the 1980s and to give the courts the
ability to impose larger maximum fines on those persons and
organizations who would join hands with the drug trafficker in an
attempt to circumvent our efforts to remove the financial
incentives which motivate this illegal and destructive activity.
All of the proposed changes would enhance our efforts under the
Bank Secrecy Act.

Several of the needed amendments to Title 31 of the United
States Code and related provisions of Titles 18, 21, and 26,
are included in H.R. 6497, the House counterpart to S§.2572.
President Reagan has publicly praised S$.2572, and the Depaftment
of Justice supports enactment of this legislation - the Violent
Crime and Drug Enforcement Improvements Act of 1982. Provisions
of the bill relating to the Bank Secrecy Act are located in Title
IX, Part I.

A. Increased Penalties

The first subsections of Section 916 in Part I would raise

the maximum civil penalty from $1,000 to $10,000, and raise the
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maximum criminal penalty from $1,000 and/or imprisonment for up
to one year to $50,000 and/or imprisonment for up to five years.
Because violations of the Bank Secrecy Act are serious matters,
and such violations are often perpetrated in order to mask even
more serious offenses such as narcotics trafficking and organized
crime, such increased civil penalties and criminal sanctions are
clearly justified.

B. "Attempt" Provision

Subsection (c) (1) would attach an "attempt" provision to
the Bank Secrecy Act (31 U.S.C. 1101(a)) such that the attempted
violation of the Act would be proscribed. This would make clear
Congress's intent that an offense under the Act would occur prior
to a person's actually leaving the jurisdiction of the United
States. Otherwise, a crime would usually occur only after the
ability of the U.S. authorities to enforce the law had ended.
Some courts disagree, and have held that an offense does not
occur until after a person leaves the United States. While the
absence of an attempt offense has created difficulty in
connection with departures from public airports, this arguable
gap in the law is even more disruptive of efforts to control the
exportation of currency and monetary instruments through the use
of private aircraft flying out of private airports or makeshift

runways.

C. Increased Reporting Amount

Subsection (c) (2) would raise the minimum reportable amount

transported out of the United States from in excess of $5,000 to
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an amount exceeding $10,000. This upward modification of the
minimum reporting figure would reduce the burden on the
international traveler yet pare down the forms necessary for the
Customs Service to examine to spot the suspicious transactions.
The proposed change also recognizes the diminution in the value
of the old reporting figure since the passage of the Bank Secrecy
Act.

D. Warrantless Searches

Subsection (d) authorizes customs officers to make
warrantless searches where there is reasonable cause to believe
that a monetary instrument is unlawfully being brought into or
taken out of the United States. This provision would make an
exception to the search warrant requirement presently contained
in the Bank Secrecy Act (31 U.S.C. 1105(a)) such that the general
enforcement of the Act would still require a search warrant, but
the widely recognized border search exception to the common law
requirement for search warrants would also be statutorily
recognized. The present requirement is inconsistent with prior
law establishing the border search exception and unnecessarily
impedes law enforcement efforts, especially considering the ease
with which persons can conceal currency or other monetary
instruments in their luggage or on their persons.

E. Reward Authority

Subsection (e) provides for the payment of rewards to an
individual who provides information leading to the recovery of in

excess of $50,000 in fines, civil penalties, or forfeitures under
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the provisions of the Bank Secrecy Act. With respect to the need
for authority to offer monetary rewards to persons providing
information leading to the imposition of fines and forfeitures
under currency reporting laws, the nature of the offense is such
that only through reports from persons aware of the transactions
can we expect to intercept a sufficient number of shipments to
achieve a significant deterrent effect. The proposed reward
authority would provide a powerful incentive for persons to come
-forward and report such illicit activities by providing monetary
payments of twenty-five percent of fines and forfeitures
recovered up to a ceiling of $250,000. While it has been
suggested that the amount of rewards which can be paid may be
excessive, we would point out that the risk inherent in reporting
such crimes -- which usually involve activities of either
narcotics trafficking rings or organized crime syndicates noted
for their reliance upon violence -- requires a substantial
incentive in order to encourage individuals to come forward and
provide information to law enforcement officials.

F. Violations as RICO Predicate Acts

Section 917 of Part I would add currency violations to the
definitions of "racketeering activity" listed at 18 U.S.C.
Section 1961(1), thereby making Title 31 crimes predicate
offenses for RICO prosecution. "Money laundering" has been
documented as a condition precedent for organized crime and
narcotics-trafficking enterprises. Investigations in South

Florida have revealed a multi-billion dollar clandestine money
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market operating offshore. The inclusion of currency violations
proscribed by Title 31 as racketeering offenses is necessary to
allow a concerted attack upon all aspects of such criminal
enterprises. Moreover, this amendment would expedite a unified
federal response by facilitating cooperation between Treasury
agents from IRS and Customs, who have enforcement jurisdiction
over Title 31, and FBI investigators specializing in racketeering
cases under Title 18. It is ineffective to prosecute racketeers
in narcotics offenses without including the currency violations
theytcommit as RICO predicate offenses because, without the
proposed amendment, Title 31 violations are now-likely to be
severed from a RICO case. Moreover, inclusion of currency
violations as.RICO predicate offenses would enhance the ability
of prosecutors to seek forfeiture of criminal assets by author-
izing RICO forfeiture of monies used to violate Title 31.

Passage of the proposed amendment is viewed as being essential to
an adequate law enforcement response to money laundering by
organized crime and narcotics organizations. Enactment of this
amendment is strongly recommended.

G. Additional Amendments

Other needed changes that are not contained in S§.2572 or
H.R. 6497 have been proposed by federal prosecutors and agents
who have utilized the Bank Secrecy Act in attacking major
drug~-trafficking organizations. Three of the major suggestions
~which have been proposed as possible amendments to the Act are

the inclusion of wire transfers and cashier's checks in the
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coverage of the Act, addition of Section 1081 violations in the
forfeiture provision of 31 U.S.C. 1102, and the inclusion of Bank
Secrecy Act offenses in the list of offenses which may give rise
to a court-ordered interception of wire or oral communications
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 2516.

All of these proposed changes in the Bank Secrecy Act would
better enable the federal agencies involved in drug enforcement
to identify and fully examine the scope of suspected money-
laundering and drug-trafficking activity, and to link the two in
criminal prosecutions.

VIII. Conclusion

Operation Greenback, although still a relatively new
program, has demonstrated that it is operationally successful and
worthy of duplication in other jurisdictions and that the Bank
Secrecy Act is an integral part of targeting and prosecuting
major drug-trafficking organizations. Perhaps the most
significant lesson that our efforts have taught us is that the
most effective way to make inroads into the estimated $79 billion
dollar business of major drug trafficking organizations is
through the mutual efforts of all federal law enforcement
agencies in unified drug-currency-tax investigations and

prosecutions.





















criminal violations. Second, it contains criminal sanctions to
deter unlawful activity.

The two reports which have provided most of the underlying
foundation for the financial flow investigation techniques are as
follows:

l. Form 4789 -- Currency Transaction Report

A. Definitions

Title 31, U.S. Code, Section 1081 (as effectuated by 31 CFR
103.22) requires that bank reports of domestic currency
transactions in excess of $10,000 be filed with the Internal
Revenue Service on Form 4789. The law does not regquire reporting
of transactions betweeen banks, transactions between a bank and a
regular customer who qualifies for inclusion on an "exemption
list," nor transfers that do not involve the actual physical
transfer of currency. The form is to be filed by the banks or
financial institutions that exchange currency.

B. Criminal Violations

Title 31, U.S. Code, Section 1058 provides for a fine of up
to $1,000 or up to one year imprisonment or both for a willful
violation of the reporting requirement. Operation Greenback has
sought to identify both money couriers and corrupt bank officials
through undercover operations, surveillance, and traditional
grand jury investigation to determine the existence of unreported
currency transactions of amounts in excess of $10,000, or where a
series of transactions - each under $10,000 but aggregating to
over $10,000 - is being utilized solely to subvert the intentions

of the eporting requirement.






previously described 4789 violations.

IIT. Present Staffing

A. Operation Greenback I (Miami)

Attorneys

At the present time there are four Criminal Division
attorneys assigned from the Narcotic and Dangerous Drug Section
presently on-site in the Miami Greenback field office working in
conjunction with the United States Attorney. The attorney staff
consists of an attorney in charge and three other attorneys. 1In
addition, one I.R.S. attorney is presently "on loan" to Operation
Greenback. The Tax Division's Criminal Section has also provided
one attorney who is presently involved in the preparation of a
Title 26 tax case for prosecution in the Southern District of
Florida. Accordingly, we anticipate a minimum of four full-time
attorneys assigned to the main project as well as one attorney
working on an "as needed" basis for the exclusive prosecution of
tax cases which arise out of the project.

Special Agents

At the present time the Internal Revenue Service hes
provided twenty-six special agents and seven revenue agents to
work on the project. There are also ten U.S. Customs Service
special agents and ten special agents of the Drug Enforcement
Administration attached to the operation. Liaison is maintained
with the FBI, Secret Service, and the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco

and Firearms.






the U.S. Customs Service, Drug Enforcement Administration, and
the Federal Bureau of Investigation., The Division attorney is
working with the United States Attorney and his Assistants in the
development of the financial aspects of major drug trafficking
cases. It is expected to be highly successful in discovering andé
prosecuting violations of Title 31, Title 21, Title 26, and Title
18. It is also anticipated that significant forfeitures will
result from this effort.

On a regional scope, this attorney will also provide support
to other United States Attorneys' offices in the Midwest so that
similar programs can be developed as needed.

Iv. Investigative Techniques

In discussing the techniques utilized in Operation Greenback
it should first be noted that Operation Greenback I (Miami) is
still in a developmental stage. Nevertheless, certain investi-
gative techniques and approaches have proven successful and
resulted in what can be termed inroads into the financial
dealings of major drug traffickers and associated money
launderers. The techniques utilized and refined in Greenback are
both innovative and traditional.

Greenback has had the support of the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency and its related bank examining
officials, which, through the refinement of their audit
procedures, have been able to uncover suspicious activity and
violations of the Bank Secrecy Act. The reporting of these
violations to the Treasury Department and the subsequent

referral, when warranted, to the Internal Revenue Service for












B. Information Sharing

To effectuate the second objective of the initial
plan - viz. the exchange of information about currency
investigations - Greenback attorneys and agents have given
lectures on investigative and prosecutive techniques and the law
to Assistant United States Attorneys and investigators all over
the country, including lecturing at the most recent Major Drug
Traffickers Prosecution Conference in which federal and state
prosecutors and agents participated to examine how inter-agency
and inter-governmental cooperation could maximize nationwide drug
enforcement efforts. One of our attorneys has also participated
in the production of a videotape prepared by the Internal Revenue
Service on the Bank Secrecy Act which will be shared with the
Department of Justice for training purposes. A manual on the
investigation and prosecution of the illegal laundering and
foreign transportation of currency has been prepared bv Narcotic
Section attorney G. Roger Markley (assigned to Greenback II in
Chicago) and will be made available to prosecutors and agents.

VII. Proposed Bank Secrecy Act Amendments

It is fitting that I come before this legislative body to
discuss our proposed amendments to the Bank Secrecy Act as the
House Banking Committee held similar hearings prior to the
passage of the Bank Secrecy Act almost thirteen years ago. It is
time to bring the Bank Secrecy Act into the 1980s and to give the
courts the ability to impose larger maximum fines on those
persons and organizations who would join hands with the drug

tr. ficker in an attempt to circumvent our efforts to remove the






States. Otherwise, a crime would usually occur only after the
ability of the U.S. authorities to enforce the law had ended.

In one case, a money courier was departing the country with

$1.5 million in curre--r to make a narcotics purchase in
Colombia, and was only stopped as she was preparing to board the
aircraft for South America. " In this particular case, the
district judge found that the facts established a completed
offense; a different judge in the same district dismissed a
similar case holding that an offense does not occur until after a
person leaves the United States. While the absence of an attempt
offense has created difficulty in connection with departures from
public airports, this arguable gap in the law is even more
disruptive of efforts to control the exportation of currency and
monetary instruments through the use of private aircraft flying
out of private airports or makeshift runways.

C. 1Increased Reporting Amount

Subsection (c) (2) would raise the minimum reportable amount
transported out of the United States from in excess of $5,000 to
an amount exceeding $10,000. This upward modification of the
minimum reporting figure would reduce the burden on the
international traveler yet pare down the forms necessary for the
Customs Service to examine to spot the suspicious transactions.
The proposed change also recognizes the diminution in the value
of the o0ld reporting figure since the passage of the Bank Secrecy
Act.

D. Warrantles: 3earches

Subsec*~*on (d) would authorize customs officers to make
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either narcotics trafficking rings or organized crime syndicates
noted for their reliance upon violence =~ requires a substantial
incentive in order to encourage individuals to come forward and
provide information to law enforcement officials.

F. Violations as RICO Predicate Acts

Section 917 of Part I would add currency violations to the
definitions of "racketeering activity" listed at 18 U.S.C.
Section 1961(1), thereby making Title 31 crimes predicate
offenses for RICO prosecution. "Money laundering” has been
documented as an indispensible vehicle for organized crime and
narcotics~trafficking enterprises. 1Investigations in South
Florida have revealed a multi-billion dollar clandestine money
market operating offshore. The inclusion of currency violations
proscribed by Title 31 as racketeering offenses would facilitate
a concerted attack upon all aspects of such criminal enterprises.

All of these proposed changes in the Bank Secrecy Act would
better enable the federal agencies involved in drug enforcement
to identify and fully examine the scope of suspected money-
laundering and drug-trafficking activity, and to link the two in
criminal prosecutions.

VIII. Conclusion

The Bank Secrecy Act is an integral part of targeting and
prosecuting major drug-trafficking organizations. Our substan-
tial commitment to utilization of the Act is demonstrated by our
assignment of our most experienced drug prosecutors to investiga-

tions involving drug-currency violations. Operation Greenback,















































